Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the EXECUTIVE will be held at the Civic
Offices, Shute End, Wokingham on THURSDAY 28 MAY
2015 AT 7.30 PM

Andy Couldrick
Chief Executive
Published on 19 May 2015

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business
Our Priorities

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social
and economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business
growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services
The Underpinning Principles

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and
fuel efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

MEMBERSHIP OF THE EXECUTIVE (subject to the appointments being confirmed at
Annual Council)
Keith Baker
Julian McGhee-Sumner
Charlotte Haitham Taylor
Pauline Jorgensen
John Kaiser
Philip Mirfin
Anthony Pollock
Angus Ross

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader and Health and Wellbeing
Children's Services
Resident Services
Planning and Highways
Regeneration and Communities
Economic Development and Finance
Environment

SUBJECT

1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 26
March 2015

3.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

4.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of the Executive
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Council or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

4.1

Maiden Erlegh

Claire MacDonald has asked the Executive Member
for Children's Services the following question:
We understand that space can be made available at
Loddon School, using either “The Parent Hut”, which
has provision for young children, or the former
Children’s Centre which is, currently partly used as
offices. Considering there are circa 30 Earley families
that have been offered a divert school then we would

PAGE
NO.

7 - 14

like to understand from the Executive what factors are
preventing the council from utilising this space for a
2015/16 reception class?"
5.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to
ask questions submitted under Notice
Any questions not dealt with within the allotted time will
be dealt with in a written reply

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION
6.

None Specific

REVENUE MONITORING 2014/15 – OUTTURN
2014-15

15 - 24

7.

None Specific

CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT 2014/15

25 - 36

8.

None Specific

GYPSY AND TRAVELLER LOCAL PLAN
PREFERRED OPTIONS CONSULTATION

37 - 42

9.

None Specific

CHANGES TO CHARGING FOR ATTENDANCE AT
ADULT SOCIAL CARE DAY CENTRES FROM JUNE
2015

43 - 46

10.

None Specific

COUNCIL OWNED COMPANIES' BUSINESS

47 - 56

11.

Finchampstead
South

GORSE RIDE SOUTH

57 - 66

12.

Hurst

TAPE LANE (Part 2 sheet)

67 - 72

13.

Arborfield

NEW SECONDARY SCHOOL IN THE SOUTH OF
WOKINGHAM (Part 2 sheet)

73 - 82

14.

Norreys

WOKINGHAM THEATRE NEW LEASE (Part 2 sheet)

83 - 88

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
The Executive may exclude the public in order to discuss the Part 2 sheets above
and to do so it must pass a resolution in the following terms:
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as appropriate.

A decision sheet will be available for inspection at the Council’s offices (in Democratic
Services and the General Office) and on the web site no later than two working days after
the meeting.

CONTACT OFFICER
Anne Hunter
Tel
Email
Postal Address

Service Manager, Democratic Services
0118 974 6051
democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE EXECUTIVE
HELD ON 26 MARCH 2015 FROM 7.30 PM TO 8.10 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Keith Baker (Chairman), Julian McGhee-Sumner, Charlotte Haitham Taylor,
Pauline Jorgensen, Anthony Pollock and Angus Ross
Other Councillors Present
Prue Bray
Lindsay Ferris
Tom McCann
Malcolm Richards, Deputy Executive Member for Planning and Highways
124. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors John Kaiser and Philip Mirfin. The
Leader confirmed that Councillor Malcolm Richards, Deputy Executive Member for
Planning and Highways would be attending the meeting on behalf of Councillor Kaiser
however as in accordance with legislation he could take part in any discussions but was
not entitled to vote.
125. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 19 February 2015 were confirmed as
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
126. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
A pecuniary declaration of interest was submitted from Councillor Anthony Pollock in
respect of Item: 127 Arborfield Cross Relief Road, on the grounds that he owned property
at Arborfield Court which could be affected by the proposed relief road. He indicated that
he would withdraw from the room for the duration of that item.
127. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Chairman invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.
127.1 Phiala Mehring asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question
The strategy is lacking measurable targets/goals. Without these how do we know what
success looks like or whether the strategy needs to change and adapt over time? For
example, targets could be set for:- obtaining a few capital schemes or attracting other
funding to reduce flood risk, - reducing surface and highway run-off into the Loddon,
Emmbrook or Barkham Brook. Can we please have set targets embedded into the
strategy?
Answer
Due to the inability of Phiala Mehring to attend the meeting the written answer below was
sent to her:
The local flood risk management strategy has been produced in keeping with guidance
issued by DEFRA and the specific requirements of the Flood and Water Management Act.

7

The strategy sets out six key objectives and each objective has a series of measures that
will be used to determine how effectively the Borough is meeting those objectives.
In addition Chapter 8 of the strategy is an action plan for delivery of the objectives. The
measures and proposed actions associated with each objective are set out in more detail
along with a broad assessment of financial implications and timescale for delivery.
One of the first actions to come out of the strategy will be to prepare a more detailed
programme for delivery of the actions.
It should also be noted that the Overview and Scrutiny committee receive an annual report
on flooding in the Borough and this will be an ideal opportunity for Members to track
progress against the strategy objectives.
Unfortunately some of the replies to the consultation on the strategy were not received by
the team and therefore were not taken into account when the strategy was revised. We
have now received those responses. We have chosen to delay bringing the strategy to the
Executive for approval so as all of the consultation responses can be given due
consideration.
128. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Chairman invited Members to submit
questions to the appropriate Members.
At this point the Leader of Council indicated that he wished to make a statement. He
commented that in relation to question EM1 an assurance panel had recently met and
made a number of recommendations in this area. One of the recommendations would
address the request made in the question by the appointment of an independent individual
to seek assurance that all the processes were in place within Children’s Services in order
to address the issues relating to child sexual exploitation. It was intended to work with the
opposition group to shape, frame and appoint the independent individual.

128.1 Lindsay Ferris asked the Executive Member for Children's Services the
following question:
Question
In response to the Leader’s statement Councillor Lindsay Ferris indicated that he wished
to withdraw his question.
128.2 Prue Bray asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
At the November Council meeting, Councillor John Kaiser said that the Wokingham Town
Centre Car Parks Strategy would go to the January Executive meeting. It didn’t. Nor did it
go to the February meeting, and it is not listed in the Agenda for tonight. Why has it been
delayed?

8

Answer
In the absence of the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the answer was
provided by Councillor Malcolm Richards, Deputy Executive Member for Highways and
Transport.
The specifics of car parking numbers required across the town will be dealt with in the
planning application for Elms Field.
In addition a wider strategy for travel to and around the town is being written and this will
incorporate aspirations for car parking. This vision document will be brought to Members
in due course.
Supplementary Question
I am slightly nervous about this because as a Council we are making decisions about the
regeneration and about roads, major planning applications and so on. What we do not
have is a comprehensive vision of what is happening with parking at the moment in the
town; both on-street and off-street which is not part of the Council’s owned car parks. I
would like to encourage you to push Councillor Kaiser into getting a move on and doing
something more comprehensive. You referred in the answer to ‘in due course’. Do you
have any idea of how long in due course is?
Supplementary Answer
I do not have a date for you on that, but I will speak to Councillor Kaiser about it.
The Leader of the Council added:
Can I also suggest that you and Councillor Kaiser get together to have a meeting to thrash
this out as I know you have had concerns for some time. I will also raise it with him.
128.3 Tom McCann asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question
The Local Flood Risk Management Strategy report shows that you do not have in house
expertise to draft a comprehensive strategy; it also shows you do not have enough money
in your budget to implement a strategy and you have little expectation of getting any more
money. Is your only strategy to cross your fingers and hope it does not rain?
Answer
I am not sure where you get your allegations from Councillor McCann, but you are way off
the mark again. By the way, I do not know whether your concerns were raised in the
consultation we carried out last year?
The Council has developed the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy, in the form
required by the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, working closely with our term
consultant WSP. WSP have a wider range of expertise in this field than a small authority
such as Wokingham could ever expect to employ. The project was overseen by the
Council’s Flood Risk Manager who has a great deal of experience and expertise in flood
and drainage matters.
The action plan that arises from the strategy will be overseen by a working group
composed of Members and Officers. Where necessary we will also employ expert advice
on matters where we need additional resource.

9

As and when specific projects are identified, then funding will be sought to realise them.
Funding for flood protection may be from one or more of the following - the Council’s own
budgets, DEFRA, the Environment Agency, a levy placed on all lead flood authorities of
which we are one, or from developer contributions. The Council’s capital programme,
agreed at the February Executive, clearly laid out additional funding for flood protection
schemes. £200,000 a year has been allocated to general drainage and flood schemes
and £4.1m has been allocated to address specific flooding problems, including on key
parts of the road network. This is significantly more than has been allocated to flood
schemes in previous years.
In conclusion, this piece of work lays a solid foundation on which to build stronger
protection against future flood events. Already we found last year that work done after the
2007 floods protected areas previously affected and we will be bringing forward schemes
to reduce the impact on our roads especially over the Loddon which was the major issue in
last year’s flood event.
I refute your allegations and trust my statement puts the record straight for our residents.
Supplementary Question
Having spent this afternoon reading through all the wonderful reports on the Flooding
Strategy and all the various mechanisms that are recommended in order to fill in forms to
get money from the Government, can you at least assure me that if the Government
allocates money to the Council for flood prevention that is used for flood prevention rather
than filling in potholes in the road which the Council is supposed to do anyway?
Supplementary Answer
The money is only normally allocated for specific schemes. The road ones that I was
referring to were things like the A327 between Arborfield and Shinfield where the road
floods there and we hope as part of the start of the works for the Easter Relief Road in
Shinfield to raise the road so that it does not flood; not fill in a pothole.
129.

ADOPTION OF ARBORFIELD AND NEWLAND VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT
The Executive considered a report relating to the adoption of the Arborfield and Newland
Village Design Statement as a Supplementary Planning Document.
The Deputy Executive Member for Planning and Highways advised Members that the
proposed design statement had been prepared by Arborfield and Newland Parish Council
to enhance the quality of developments within the parish and to preserve the future rural
qualities of the parish. He commented that the Arborfield and Newland Village Design
Statement would be one of 11 Supplementary Planning Documents adopted by the
Borough Council.
The Leader of the Council clarified that the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was
linked to Neighbourhood Plans not Village Design Statements. He commented that as he
understood it, a Village Design Statement was much more appropriate for smaller parishes
who did not wish to go through the cost or time of developing a Neighbourhood Plan. A
Village Design Statement did however offer some protections under the planning system.
RESOLVED: That the Arborfield and Newland Village Design Statement be adopted as a
Supplementary Planning Document.

10

130. SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2016/2017
The Executive considered a report relating to proposed admission arrangements for
2016/2017 for community and controlled schools and co-ordinated admission schemes.
It was noted that the main co-ordinated admission schemes apply to all state funded
schools within the Borough (including free schools and academies) and include the
admission arrangements for community and voluntary controlled schools.
The Executive Member for Children’s Services advised the meeting that every year the
Council reviewed school admission arrangements and made amendments depending on
the circumstances of the time. Small amendments for the 2016/2017 admission
arrangements were proposed including: publication of 6th Form admission numbers; the
inclusion of reference to Education Health and Care Plans; a clarification of Criterion A
within the admissions criteria; clarification around siblings; and clarification around summer
born children.
It was confirmed that if a Wokingham Borough parent applied for a school place outside of
the Borough, the adopted admission arrangements in that area would apply although the
Council would coordinate the arrangements.
Councillor Jorgensen commented that she was seeking reassurance that there was
enough overall capacity of 6th form places within the Borough; whilst recognising that the
Council had no control over the admission arrangements of Academies, which set their
own admission arrangements and admission numbers. The Executive Member for
Children’s Services responded that current provision was adequate, but there was quite a
lot of movement into and out of the Borough’s 6th forms and capacity would be impacted
by the increase in the statutory school leaving age. However, new provision would be
added through the new school in Arborfield in addition to the existing school provision and
places at Bracknell and Wokingham College; this giving pupils a range of options.
RESOLVED: That the 2016/2017 admission arrangements for community and controlled
schools and co-ordinated admission schemes as set out in the annexes to the report be
agreed.
131. ARBORFIELD CROSS RELIEF ROAD
(Councillor Pollock left the meeting and did not take part in the discussion or vote on the
item.)
The Executive considered a report relating to proposed alignment modifications for the
Arborfield Cross Relief Road in order to ensure appropriate mitigation of traffic impacts
from the development of Arborfield Cross Garrison Strategic Development Location.
The Deputy Executive Member for Planning and Highways informed the meeting that
following public consultation in 2013, when 70% of responders stated their preference for
Option B alignment modifications, the Executive agreed in 2014 to progress with this
refinement. Following further liaison meetings in 2014 the Option B alignment has now
been considered in detail and has been determined as feasible and appropriate to mitigate
the impacts of the SDL development.
To date all directly affected landowners had indicated a willingness to engage in
negotiations to acquire land for the road. It was intended to reduce the visual aspects of

11

the relief road by constructing the road as close to, or below, the existing ground level
where this was achievable and there would be appropriate landscaping and planting. The
road would be a single carriageway road with a 50 mph speed limit following discussions
with Thames Valley Police.
Councillor Jorgensen commented that she was pleased that the Council would again be
constructing a cycleway that had physical separation from the road as this would
encourage more residents, particularly young children, to use it.
Councillor Ross referred to the crossings, public rights of way and bridleways affected by
the relief road and commented that that it would be important to work closely with the
Local Access Forum and local ramblers in order to take account of the interests of local
horse riders and pedestrians. The Leader of the Council commented that he shared
Councillor Ross’s view and it was his understanding that appropriate crossing provision
was being looked at by Officers.
RESOLVED That:
1)
Option B alignment modifications for the Arborfield Cross Relief Road be agreed
and progressed through detailed design to a full planning application;
2)
the Council will continue liaison and discussions with Councillors, landowners,
affected residents and other stakeholders.
132. LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Executive considered a report relating to a proposed Local Flood Risk Management
Strategy which will help the Council, individuals, communities and businesses within the
Borough understand and manage local flood risk.
The Executive Member for Environment informed the meeting that the Strategy was
required by the Flood and Water Management Act. The Strategy focused upon flood risk
from surface water, ground water and streams and ditches as well as how all the sources
interacted with one another and river flooding. It formed a single consistent reference
point for flood risk management within the Borough. The six key objectives of the Strategy
were underpinned by a number of measures that the Council would implement in the
future and the document had a 15 year timeframe with short, medium and long term views
of flood risk management.
Following the agreement of the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy an action plan to
deliver the Strategy was to be developed. To assist with this a Member and Officer Task
and Finish Group was to be established.
RESOLVED: That the amended Local Flood Risk Management Strategy be adopted.
133.

MAKING PROCEDURAL DECISIONS RELATING TO NEIGHBOURHOOD
PLANNING
The Executive considered a report setting out a proposed process for the designation of a
neighbourhood area which was required as a result of amendments to the Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 which shortened the time given to determining
neighbourhood applications.
The Deputy Executive Member for Planning and Highways commented that under the
Council’s current decision making process it would not be possible to meet the new
deadlines required by the new regulations in respect of neighbourhood plan applications

12

and therefore it was proposed to deal with these decisions through the Individual
Executive Member Decision route.
The Leader of the Council requested that the Constitution Review Working Group require
that as part of the new process full consultation should be undertaken prior to the
Individual Executive Member Decision coming through for publication. The Council
followed a similar process in respect of highways issues and consultation with town and
parish councils.
RESOLVED: That in future decisions to designate a neighbourhood area be dealt with by
an Individual Executive Member Decision (IEMD) and that the Constitution Review
Working Group be asked to support this as a recommendation to Council as an
amendment to the Council’s Constitution.
134. SOUTH WOKINGHAM DISTRIBUTOR ROAD - EASTERN GATEWAY
The Executive considered a report relating to the advancement of the programme for the
Eastern Gateway as part of the South Wokingham Distributor Road (SWDR).
The Deputy Executive Member for Planning and Highways advised the meeting that the
proposals contained in the report would:
• provide early delivery of a section of the SWDR, including the rail bridge south of
Montague Park;
• enable the closure of the Waterloo Road Level Crossing which would provide
significant improvements to both road and rail safety for all users;
• assist in unlocking some development areas; and
• assist in alleviating some road traffic cutting through residential roads to the north.
Councillor Ross commented that in providing the road in different sections it was important
to ensure that all the various requirements were fed into the process at an appropriate time
to ensure they were delivered within the final project. He referred to a pedestrian subway
or bridge at the Waterloo Road crossing and the need to take account of the road
conditions on Old Wokingham Road.
The Leader of the Council stated that a bridge over the old Waterloo Road level crossing
or alternative mechanism was still a matter of high importance. The proposals in the
report represented an opportunity which needed to be acted upon, although the points
raised would be taken into consideration.
Councillor Haitham Taylor requested that whilst the work was going on in respect of the
Eastern Gateway that other road works be taken into consideration and works phased if
possible to minimise the impact on residents and local businesses. The Leader
commented that in developing major projects of this kind the general principle was that the
impact of other works would be taken into consideration.
RESOLVED that:
1) the preliminary design, site investigation works and all environmental and planning
application provisions be progressed for the section of the South Wokingham
Distributor Road – Eastern Gateway;
2) Officers continue to negotiate terms with Network Rail for securing the Eastern
Gateway as part of the overall South Wokingham Distributor Road.

13

135. COMMUTED SUMS ADVISORY PANEL
The Executive considered a report relating to the proposed establishment of a Commuted
Sums Advisory Panel to make recommendations to the Executive about the allocation of
commuted sums for affordable housing.
It was noted that the Council could receive over £60m of affordable housing commuted
sums over the coming years and the governance structure being proposed was to ensure
that resources were targeted effectively and transparently to develop new affordable
housing in the Borough.
The Leader of the Council stated that the development of the Commuted Sums Advisory
Panel formed part of larger range of measures aimed at strengthening the governance
arrangements of the Council’s wholly owned companies.
RESOLVED: That a Commuted Sums Advisory Panel be established to make
recommendations to the Executive about the allocation of commuted sums for affordable
housing.
136. CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEALTH FUNCTIONS (CONTRACT EXTENSION)
The Executive considered a report relating to the continuation of the contract for the
provision of chlamydia screening, dental, library, genitourinary medicine (GUM) and family
services and school nursing.
Members were advised that the current public health contracts with BHFT for the above
services, which were managed on behalf of the Council by Berkshire Public Health shared
team at Bracknell Forest Borough Council, were due to expire on 31 March 2015 and there
was a need to extend the contract for one year in order that the provision of service could
continue.
RESOLVED: That the current contract for the provision of chlamydia screening, dental,
library, genitourinary medicine and family services and school nursing be extended on the
same terms and conditions until 31 March 2016.

14

Agenda Item 6.
TITLE

Revenue Monitoring 2014/15 – Outturn 2014-15

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 26 May 2015

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Director Finance and Resources

LEAD MEMBER

Anthony Pollock, Executive Member for Economic
Development and Finance

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Effective management of the Council’s finances to ensure Value for Money for council
tax payers, tenants and schools.
RECOMMENDATION
The Executive is asked to:
1)
note the outturn position of the revenue budget and the level of forecast balances
in respect of the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account, Schools Block and
the Authority’s investment portfolio.
2)

agree the General Fund carry forward requests of £297,000, as set out in
Appendix F to the report.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
To consider the Revenue Monitoring, General fund, Housing Revenue Account, Schools
Block and Treasury Management Reports. The Executive agreed to consider Revenue
Monitoring Reports on a quarterly basis.
The General fund is forecasting an underspend of £30,000. Housing Revenue Account
is forecasting an underspend of £937,000. Schools Block is forecasting an overspend of
£22,000.

15

Background
The table below shows the expected forecast outturn for 2014/15 by Service. An
explanation of the major budget variances are shown in Appendix A.

Service

End of Year Position
Current
Current
Outturn Net
Approved
Forecast
over/(under)
Budget
Outturn
spend
£,000
£,000
£,000

Chief Executive
Children's Services
Health & Wellbeing
Environment
Finance & Resources

4,547
33,841
43,818
34,592
12,818

4,547
34,157
43,815
34,456
12,611

0
316
(4)
(137)
(207)

Net Expenditure

129,617

129,587

(30)

The Outturn represents a General Fund net underspend of £30,000. The value of carry
forward requests is £297k. Members are asked to approve the carry forwards in
Appendix F.
General Fund balances as at 31 March 2015 are projected to be £10.468m. The
Statement of General Fund balance is shown in Appendix B.
1. The Housing Revenue Account forecasts a net underspend of £937,000.
The indicative Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance as at the 31st March 2015
is £2,760,000. Shown in Appendix C.
2. The Schools Block currently forecasts a net overspend of £22,000.
The indicative Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) reserve balance as at 31st March
2015 is £982,000. Shown in Appendix D.
3. The authority's investment portfolio shows current investments of £71.4M being
invested by the Council's External Fund Managers. Shown in Appendix E.
Analysis of Issues
Effective monitoring of budgets is an essential element of providing cost effective
services and enables any corrective action to be undertaken, if required. Many of the
budgets are activity driven and can be volatile in nature.

16

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

To be determined

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes within overall
budget.
Yes

To be determined

Yes

Revenue

(£30k)

Revenue
Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
The Council will continue to review cost reduction measures to contain expenditure with
the overall budget.
Cross-Council Implications
None
List of Background Papers
None
Contact James Norris
Telephone No 0782 44 06 992
Date 13 May 2015

Service Finance & Resources
Email james.norris@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. v4

17

This page is intentionally left blank

18

19
(30)

12,818

Finance & Resources

129,617

(207) Final Interest on Balances reconciliation (£190k).

34,592

Environment

Net Expenditure

Salary savings (£137k) due to vacancies. Outturn includes £292k request to carry forward. Traveller
(137) local plan document (£60k), FTC enforcement officer (£95k), Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (£75k),
Grounds Maintenance Play Equipment Installation (£30k), Jubilee Trees (£10k) and Appeals (£22k).

43,818

Net increase in Placements £511k & reduction in grant allocations £279k. Less efficiencies & one off
316 funding achieved in year (£291k), additional Public Health Funding (£120k) & Home to School Transport
due to implementation of practice & policy changes (£63k).

0 No material variance. Outturn includes £5k request to carry forward.

Health & Wellbeing

33,841

4,547

Comment on major areas of estimated over/underspend

Pressures from client volume growth and increases in unit costs £625k offset by reimbursement of costs
from Optalis £282k, recovery of income from Health £150k and release of Earmarked reserves above
(4)
forecast £300k. Additional costs for Better Care Fund, Care act and Winter pressures covered from
additional funding £800k.

Children's Services

Chief Executive

Service

End of Year Position
Current
Outturn Net
Approved over/(under)
Budget
spend
£,000
£,000

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY

REVENUE MONITORING REPORT Outturn 2014-15

Appendix A

Appendix B
STATEMENT OF GENERAL FUND BALANCE
£,000

G.F. Balance (as at 31/3/2014)

£,000

(11,040)

Use of Balances 2013/14
None
SUB-TOTAL

0
0

Supplementary Estimates
Carry forward requests submitted to Executive 26th June 2014

602
602

Projected Service Unit Variance excluding requests to carry forward
Chief Executive
Children's Services
Health & Wellbeing
Environment
Finance & Resources

(5)
316
(4)
(429)
(207)
(327)

Forecast General Fund Balance 31/3/2015

(10,765)

20

21

1,629

General Management

HRA Reserves brought forward 1st April 2014
Service Improvement Carry Forward
HRA Reserves as at 31st March 2014
Forecast Variance 2014-15
Estimated HRA balance as at 31st March 2015

Internal and Capital Charges

Subtotal Excluding Internal Recharges

Sheltered Accommodation

Rents

Other Special Expenses

Housing Repairs

(4,808)
3,871
(937)

3,871
0

445

(14,848)

210

2,790

(3)

1,424

(390)

5,566

£,000

(3,871)

525

(14,242)

221

2,829

0

(404)

Fees & Charges / Capital Finance Charges

House Sales

5,571

£,000

14 No material variance.

(5) No material variance.

Note re Outturn Variance

Underspend due to fewer one-off projects funded by contingency budget (£20k), employee vacancies (£6k)
and lower utility bills (£23k), increased Welfare payments received not in the budget (£29k).

The approved contribution to provision for bad debt rent was reduced (£387k), higher Rental income from
Dwellings (£220k).

(1,823)
0
(1,823)
(937)
(2,760)

(937)

0 No material variance.

(937)

(81)

(607)

(11) No material variance.

Reactive maintenance costs for Reading Contract and third party suppliers £170k, void property repairs
costs £40k offset by planned maintenance (£30k), Heating maintenance (£138k), estate management
(39)
(£26k) and staffing costs (£34k). Inter-company recharges for services provided and successful insurance
claims against property damage (£21k).

(3) No material variance.

Staff vacancies (£36k), training (£38k), contingency (£91k), delay in cross service delivery reviews (£76k),
(205) lower court costs due to a decrease in mediation (£14k), community involvement (£55k) and offset by
Eustace Crescent Council Tax bill £119k & increased internal expenditure £51k.

£,000

End of year position
Current
Outturn
Variance
Approved
Budget

Capital Finance

Housing Revenue Account

Service

REVENUE MONITORING REPORT 2014/15
Report Date: Outturn 2014-15

Appendix C

22
(1,004)

TOTAL YEAR-END (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

Schools Block Reserves brought forward 1st April 2014
Service Improvement Carry Forward
Schools Block Reserves as at 31st March 2014
Forecast Variance 2014-15
Estimated Schools Block balance as at 31st March 2015

(1,607)

Brought Forward (surplus) / deficit balance

604

(100,672)

TOTAL SCHOOLS BLOCK FUNDING INCOME

NET TOTAL SCHOOLS BUDGET in-year (surplus) / deficit

101,276

13,875

Total Central Expenditure

TOTAL SCHOOLS BUDGET EXPENDITURE

87,401

£1,353k additional High Needs Block allocations; £291k additional
allocations matched by grant; (£262k) Early Years settings.

Comment on major areas of estimated over/underspend

Additional Grant allocations (£357k) including Pupil Premium Grant
(£152k).

(1,004)
0
(1,004)
22
(982)

22 TOTAL (£982k) (SURPLUS)

0

22

(357)

379

(£623k) underspend in Independent Special School placements; (£150k)
underspend by Moderation Panel; (£125k) planned contingency to offset
(1,003)
other pressures; (£106k) receipt from West Berkshire Borough Council
relating to 2012/13 recoupment.

1,382

£,000

£,000

Total Individual Schools Budgets & Early Years Allocations

Outturn Net
over/(under)
spend

Current
Approved
Budget

End of year position

SCHOOLS BLOCK MONITORING REPORT Outturn 2015

Appendix E
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
Fitch Long
Term
Rating *

In House
Max
Limit
Duration
£000 Months

Others
Local Authorities:
Woking Borough Council
AAA
Blackpool BC
AAA
Barnsley Borough Council (15/09/14)
AAA
London Borough of Enfield (18/09/14)
AAA
Eastleigh Borough Council (15/04/15)
AAA
Salford City Council (31/01/15)
AAA
Birmingham City Council (16/06/2014, 14/08/14)
AAA
Lancashire County Council (28/08/14,
AAA
West Lothian City Council (19/05/15)
AAA
Newcastle Borough Council
AAA
Leeds City Council
AAA
Fife Council
AAA
South Lanarkshire
AAA
Debt Management Office (DMO)
AAA
Cash
AAA
Money Market Funds
Invesco Global Cash management (formerly AIM MMF) AAA
Deutsche Bank Sterling Fund (formerly Henderson MMF) AAA
Goldman Sachs
AAA
Goldman Sachs - govt backed
AAA
SWIP Global Liquidity Fund
AAA
SWIP Investment CA
AAA
RLAM Investment CA
AAA

5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
20,000

12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

Rate

0.48%
0.43%
0.45%
0.40%
0.48%
0.40%
0.40%
0.50%
0.40%
0..45%
0.40%
0.45%
0.65%

In House
RLAM
Investment Investment
£000
£000

SWIP
WBC Total
Investment Investment
£000
£000

% of
Portfolio

0
5,000
3,000
3,000
5,000
3,000
2,000
5,000
5,000
3,000
5,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
0
2

0%
10%
6%
6%
10%
6%
4%
10%
10%
6%
10%
6%
6%
6%
0%
0%

0
0
0
0
11,524
0
0

0%
0%
0%
0%
23%
0%
0%

2,506

5%

5,000
3,000
3,000
5,000
3,000
2,000
5,000
5,000
3,000
5,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
2

5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000

36
36
36
36

0.54%
0.62%
0.31%
0.19%

0
0
0
0
11,524

BANKING GROUPS
Nordea Group
Nordea Bank Finland (27/11/14 03/02/15)

AA-

3,000

12

0.50%

0

Credit Agricole Group
Credit Agricole CIB (22/07/14)

AA-

3,000

12

0.53%

0

0

0%

Bank of New York Co, Inc Group
Bank of New York

AA-

3,000

12

0

0

0%

Banco Santander Hispano Group
Banco Santander UK plc(On Call)

A+

3,000

6

0

0%

HSBC Group
HSBC Bank

AA

3,000

6

0

0%

AAAA-

3,000
3,000
5,000

6
6

0
1,316

0%
3%

A
A
AA-

3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000

6
6
6

0
0
0

0%
0%
0%

AAAAAA
A
AAA+
AA
AA
AA
AA
AA

3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000

12
12
12
6
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

0.65%
0.90%
0.45%
0.52%
0.47%
0.51%
0.75%
0.78%
0.63%

0
0
0
0
0
2,002
0
0
2,514
2,511
1,005

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
4%
0%
0%
5%
5%
2%

2,000
2,000
2,000

6
6
6

0.48%
0.45%
0.40%

0
0
0
71,380

0%
0%
0%

Lloyds Banking Group
Bank of Scotland Plc
Lloyds Bank (On call)
Group Limit
Royal Bank of Scotland Group
Royal Bank of Scotland Group (On Call)
Royal Bank of Scotland plc(25/10/12)
Natwest
Group Limit
INDIVIDUAL BANKS
Deutsche Bank
Societe General
Toronto Dominon Bank
Close Brothers
Barclays Bank
ING Bank (01/11/14)
Svenska Handelsbanken (28/07/14)
BNP Paribas (14/11/14)
Rabobank(09/09/14)
National Australia Bank
Commonwealth Bank of Australlia
Building Societies

Nationwide Building Society (13/08/14)
A+
Coventry Building Society (19/08/14)
Leeds Building Society (15/10/13)
ATOTAL EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS
In House figures as at 28/02/15 and Fund Managers figures as at 31/01/15

23

0.35%

0

0.42%

2,506

0

1,316

1.28%
1.32%
0

0

0 .
0
0

0

0
0
0
48,000

0
0
0
0
2,002
0
0
2,514
2,511
1,005

0

11,854

11,526

1

Appendix D

BUDGET CARRY FORWARDS to 2015-2016
Service: Chief Executive
Amount
Budget Description
(Excluding VAT)
£
5,000
Training & Development

Reason for Carry Forward
Completion of professional qualification.

5,000

Service: Environment
Amount
(Excluding VAT)
£

Budget Description

75,000

Strategic Flood Assessment

60,000

Gypsy Roma Traveller (GRT) Local Plan

10,000

Jubilee Tree Maintenance

22,000

Supplementary Estimate funding for Judicial
Reviews.

95,000

Enforcement Action

30,000

Cleaner & Greener Services - Other North

Reason for Carry Forward
Updating of flood risk evidence base – following proposed changes to
responsibilities for Lead Local Flood Authorities.
GRT Local Plan – which has slipped in timetable due to government consultation
on changes to planning regulations.
Tree maintenance comprising inspection, pruning, watering and weeding is
required for a 5 year period commencing in 2013/14 and finishing in 2017/18.
The original budget approval spanned several years.
Towards counsel legal advice and representation for any challenges to Planning
and Delivery decisions.
Allocated for resourcing the planning enforcement. This has funded an additional
post within the team to implement the enforcement review recommendations. This
budget will fund the post for a number of years .
Ashenbury Park, Park Lane and Laurel Park Play area installations delayed due
to wet ground conditions.

292,000
297,000

24

Agenda Item 7.
TITLE

Capital Outturn Report 2014/15

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Director of Finance and Resources

LEAD MEMBER

Anthony Pollock, Executive Member for Economic
Development and Finance

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Effective and safe use of our resources to deliver service improvements and service
continuity through capital investments
RECOMMENDATION
The Executive is asked to:
1)
note the Capital Outturn and committed carry forwards (for 2014/15) as set out in
Appendix A to the report;
2)

approve the carry forwards for schemes which are awaiting contractual
commitment (totalling £7.5m) detailed in Appendix B to the report.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
The report informs members of the outturn and performance of the capital programme
for 2014/15. (See appendix A for further detail)
Budget
£'000
Medium Term Financial Plan Approved
Budget 14 / 15
Brought /Fwd. from 13 / 14
In year Funding Movements

39,130
3,619

Total budget

25

52,905

95,654

The in- year movements are summarised below:
£'000

In- year movements
New schemes / Additional funding for
current schemes
Reduction in Primary Strategy due to
acceleration in 13-14

6,543
(2,924)
Total

3,619

Outturn
£'000
Total Budget

95,654

Actual Expenditure

45,335

Proposed Cfwds

50,236
(Underspend) / overspend

26

(83)

Background
The 2014/15 Expenditure of £45.3m was spent on the following categories:
Actual Expenditure
14/15
£'000
Schools
Social Housing
Town Centre Regeneration
Highways and Maintenance
Strategic Development
Station Link Road
Cycle infrastructure improvement scheme
Coppid Beech Roundabout Improvements and
Enhancements
Road & Highways infrastructure improvement scheme
IT Systems (including hardware/software)
Safety / Crash Barriers
Improved Capacity at Travellers Site

10,309
7,288
4,034
4,033
3,946
2,324
1,957
1,824
1,556
1,434
1,188
1,052

Street Lighting Asset Replacement & column testing

766

Strategic Assets
Leisure facilities
Wokingham Housing Limited
Highway Bridges
Investment in Special Education Needs Provision
Mandatory Disabled Facility Grants
Solar and Renewable Energy Systems
Country parks & play areas
Flood Alleviation / Drainage
Wokingham Libraries
Enhancing Provision for Children & Young People with
Disabilities
Provision for Super-Fast Broadband
Strategic Development
Investment in Civic space
Waste Collection Strategy
Tree works & WBC Ancient Woodland Inventory
Highways Footway Structural Maintenance & improvement
ICT Equipment for children in care
Civil Parking Enforcement
Governance and Improvement - Other
Grand Total

628
578
413
294
281
246
208
193
173
156

27

112
91
70
68
29
27
22
12
12
11
45,335

Analysis of Issues
The analysis of capital spend 2014/15 is shown in Appendix A. Where there have been
contractual commitments to schemes, these unspent funds are carry forward
automatically.
A summary of schemes not currently contractually committed to which are seeking
approval to carry forward into 2015/16, totalling £7.5m are detailed in Appendix B.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

£45.3m

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

£50.2M

Yes

Capital

Capital

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
None
Cross-Council Implications
None
List of Background Papers
Appendix A – Main report
Appendix B – Carry Forwards
Contact Martin Jones
Telephone No 0118 9746877
Date 11 May 2015

Service Finance and Resources
Email martin.jones@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 3

28

Appendix A

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2014/2015 OUTTURN REPORT

1|P age

29

Appendix A
WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
Capital Programme 2014/15 Outturn
INDEX
1.0
2.0

Capital budget structure
Financial summary
2.1
Performance of the capital programme
2.2
Breakdown of carry forwards
2.3
Breakdown of over/under spends
2.4
Variance from December monitoring

3
4
4
4
5
5

2|P age

30

Appendix A
1.0 Capital Budget structure

2014-15 Capital Programme
Budget by Service £'000
Finance &
Chief Executive,
£21,194

Resources, £4,866
Environment,
£26,629

Children's Services,
£21,721

Health & Wellbeing,
£21,244

The breakdown by service of the total programme for 2014/15 is shown in the table
below:
MTFP
Approved
Budget
14 / 15

Brought/Fwd.
from 13 / 14

In year
Funding
Movements

Total
budget
£

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Service Unit
Chief Executive

11,467

9,716

11

21,194

Children's Services

13,466

9,059

(804)

21,721

Health & Wellbeing

10,429

9,606

1,209

21,244

Environment

15,325

8,593

2,711

26,629

2,218

2,157

491

4,866

52,905

39,131

3,618*

95,654

Finance & Resources

Note: * This funding movement is for new schemes, additional funding for current
schemes and to release WBC/unring-fenced grants for use in future years.

3|P age

31

Appendix A

2.0 Financial summary
The performance of the actual compared with the budget by service is shown below:
Table 2.1

Budget
( Inc.13 / 14
Brought Fwd.)

Actual
Expenditure
14 / 15

Proposed
Carry fwd. to
15 / 16

(Under) /
Overspend

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Service Unit
Chief Executive

21,194

4,045

17,149

(0)

Children's Services

21,721

10,724

10,928

(69)

Health & Wellbeing

21,244

9,940

11,319

15

Environment

26,629

18,658

7,931

(40)

4,866

1,968

2,909

11

95,654

45,335

50,236*

(83)**

Finance & Resources

* See table 2.2 for breakdown
** See table 2.3 for breakdown
A breakdown of carry forwards by type across the service is as follows:
Table 2.2

Service Unit

Committed

Uncommitted

Proposed Carry
Fwd. To 15 / 16

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Service Unit
Chief Executive

17,149

0

17,149

Children's Services

10,410

517

10,928

Health & Wellbeing

8,928

2,392

11,319

Environment

4,820

3,111

7,931

Finance & Resources

1,423

1,486

2,909

42,730

7,506

50,236

4|P age

32

Appendix A
The overall underspend is £46,000, the breakdown is shown in the following table:
Table 2.3
(Under) /
Overspend
£'000

Asset Type

Improved Capacity at Travellers Site

Comments

272

Social Housing

63

Cycle infrastructure improvement scheme

244

Twyfords Orchards Extension,
4 extra pitches (additional
utility block, surfacing works
& security)
48 Oxford Rd (Hostel),
Refurbishment / redesign
Lower Earley Way - new cycle
route (£202k) and A329
Cycleway Phase 2 (Showcase
Roundabout programme
extension)(£42K)

Net Under/overspend under £50k

(137)

Road & Highways infrastructure
improvement scheme

(157)

Various small underspends

Waste Collection Strategy

(102)

Saving on London road joint
arrangement scheme.

(266)

Demolition costs for Eustace
Crescent and Foster's site
now funded by Wokingham
Housing Ltd

Strategic Development

(83)

In December 2014 the projected year end outturn was £317,000 overspent. This has
decreased to an underspend of £83,000 at the end of March 2015. See table below:
Table 2.4
December
Year-end
Variance
(under)/overspend (under)/overspend
£'000

£'000

£'000

Service Unit
Chief Executive
Children's Services
Health & Wellbeing
Environment
Finance & Resources

0
(14)
228
103
0
317

Grand Total

(0)
(69)
16
(41)
11
(83)

0
(55)
(212)
(144)
11
400

5|P age

33

Appendix A

6|P age

34

Appendix B

Proposed capital carry forwards from 2014/15 to 2015/16
Please find in the following table the proposed capital carry forwards
from 2014/15 into 2015/16 .
Project

Description

£'000

P1607

Enhancing Provision for Children &
Young People with Disabilities

C2133

School Catering Properties - Installation
of Gas Safety Interlock System

P1495,P1606

School Kitchens

P1313

Schools Access - (Bfwd 11-12)

18

C1532

Fire Inspection Work (Schools)

17

C1658

Gorse Ride Jnr. Sch - Drain Works
Beechwood Pri. Sch - Main
Switchgear,Sub-Mains Cables &
Dist.Boards

C1744
C1750
C1771

85
8
117

Emmbrook Inf. Sch - Radiators (20x) &
associated pipework (box in)
Forest Comp Sch - Main switch panel,
submains & distribution boards

7
23

87

Robert Piggott CE Inf. Sch - Roof works

3

C1848

Loddon Pri. School - Heating, Pipework
& Ventilation (legionella)

5

P1605

Schools Urgent Maintenance

16

P1609

Investment in Secondary Schools
Specialist Educ. Provision (14-19
Learning Centre & ASD Unit)
ASD Unit
Children's Services
Safety / Crash Barriers
Finchampstead Rd North Rail Bridge

40

P1397
P1629
C1697
P1638

These schemes are linked to
Health and safety issues in
schools and the schools urgent
maintenance budget.

11

C1823

P1390

Comments

40
41
518
750 Loddon Viaduct phase 2
29

Strategic Land Purchases - Opportunities
to Purchase Land for Strategic Purposes

2,332

Environment

3,111

1|P age

35

Appendix B

C2086

Shute End - Replacement of Control
Valves to Air Handling

C2108

Gas Management and Structural Repairs

C1734
C2205
C2208

42

Toutley Depot - over roofing (Balfour
Beatty Office)
St Crispins - Sustainable Heating
Systems
Westende Solar Photovoltaic (PV) energy
systems

150
27
4
15

P1598

Sustainable Heating Systems

80

P1599

Solar and Renewable Energy Systems
Commercial Portfolio - Improvement to
Industrial Units

20

P1600
P1597

14

Strategic Capital Reserve

1,133

Finance & Resources

1,485

P1515,
P1620

Mandatory Disabled Facility Grants

C2142

Woodley Community Hub (Weastmead
Relocation) - Initial Funds for PrePlanning Application Works

P1381

Replacement for Day services for adults
(physical disabilities)

465

P1383

Learning Disabilities (Autism) Premises

214

P1503

Extra Care / Enhanced Sheltered Housing

250

P1610
P1611

No budget in 15-16 due to cfwd
request

240

Day Services for Adults with Physical
Disabilities
Live Well Rehab Gym - New Flooring and
Equipment

10
These schemes are linked to the
Woodley community hub project

180
25

P1612

Extra Care / Enhanced Sheltered Housing

1,000

P1501

Supported Living Accommodation
Health & Wellbeing

8
2,392

Total

7,506

2|P age

36

Agenda Item 8.
TITLE

Gypsy and Traveller Local Plan Preferred Options
Consultation

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

None Specific

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR

Heather Thwaites, Director of Environment

LEAD MEMBER

John Kaiser, Executive Member for Highways and
Planning

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Once adopted, the GTLP will ultimately ensure that the Council has allocated sufficient
deliverable sites for Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople, as well as
providing criteria-based policies against which planning applications for sites can be
judged. Having an up to date plan with allocated sites will reduce the likelihood of
unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller sites in the Borough and will also enable the Council
to take more effective enforcement action against any unauthorised development. The
Preferred Options is a key stage in the development process of the plan and the GTLP
will gain more weight as a material consideration in planning terms as it progresses
toward adoption.
RECOMMENDATION
The Executive is advised to:
1)

approve the Gypsy and Traveller Local Plan Preferred Options for consultation for
an eight week period together with publishing supporting documents;

2)

authorise the Director of Environment, in consultation with the Executive Member
for Strategic Planning and Highways, to agree minor modifications to the Gypsy
and Traveller Local Plan Preferred Options and other supporting documents prior
to consultation. (Any minor modifications would consist of non-material alterations
such as rewording and correction of typing errors).

SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Council is required by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) to identify a
rolling supply of Gypsy and Traveller sites. Site allocations have to be identified in a
Development Plan (Local Plan). The Council has chosen to do this through a Gypsy and
Traveller Local Plan (GTLP). In order to develop the GTLP it is necessary to consult on
the options available to the Council in planning to meet the accommodation needs of the
Gypsy and Traveller community.
This was previously carried out through the consultation on the GTLP Draft Options in
August-October 2014. The responses to this consultation about how the needs of the
Travelling community should be met and what criteria should be used to judge potential
sites and future planning applications have now been considered and the GTLP
Preferred Options document has been produced, which is the next stage in the process

37

of producing the GTLP. In addition, the GTLP Preferred Options is also informed by the
findings of the updated Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) which
will be published alongside the Preferred Options as a supporting document, together
with Sustainability Appraisals of the options and sites.
The GTLP Preferred Options identifies the most suitable approaches to address various
key issues that will be covered by the GTLP. It does not seek to allocate any sites.
Officers are seeking authority to consult on the Preferred Options for an eight week
period from 4th June to 30th July.
Due to the size of the GTLP Preferred Options it is not included in the agenda.
Copies can be found on the Council’s website or on request from Democratic
Services.

38

Background
The Gypsy and Traveller Local Plan (GTLP) is one of a number of important planning
policy documents that make up the Development Plan for the Borough. Planning law
requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance
with the Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
In March 2012, the Government published Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS)
alongside the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The PPTS requires local
authorities to identify a supply of specific deliverable sites (5 year supply) and
developable sites or broad locations for growth (over a further 15 years) to meet locally
set targets. Local authorities should also identify criteria to guide site allocations and
help determine planning applications.
The Managing Development Delivery (MDD) Local Plan includes a criteria-based policy
(TB10 ‘Traveller Sites’) which sets out the overarching requirements for sites for
Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople but does not allocate sites. The
GTLP will allocate sites and also enhance the Council’s approach to Gypsy and
Traveller provision through providing criteria-based polices to help manage
development.
As part of the production of the GTLP, consultation took place on the Draft Sustainability
Appraisal Scoping Report from 18th July to 23rd August 2013 and further consultation on
the GTLP Draft Options from 7th August to 2nd October 2014. During both of these
consultations, a ‘Call for Sites’ was also held to allow people to submit possible sites for
Gypsy and Traveller provision.
The responses to the GTLP Draft Options consultation have been considered by
officers and used to create the GTLP Preferred Options. A summary of these responses
is included as part of the Background Papers.
The Council also commissioned an updated Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment (GTAA) to identify the need for Gypsy and Traveller sites for the period
2014 - 2029. This GTAA (March 2015) – which replaces the previous GTAA published
in March 2013 – will ensure that the GTLP is based on robust and credible evidence.
The GTAA March 2015 has informed the preparation of the GTLP Preferred Options
and will be published alongside it as a supporting document.

Analysis of Issues
The GTLP Preferred Options is a key stage in the process of production of a Local Plan
to meet the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling
Showpeople in Wokingham Borough. It focuses on the preferred methods and
approaches for how need should be met – including the most suitable geographical
location of Traveller sites and how large sites these should be - and the more detailed
aspects that should be considered when dealing with Gypsy and Traveller development
(such as site layout, landscaping and amenity buildings). The Preferred Options focuses
on flexible approaches to addressing issues so that the Council does not limit its
capacity to adapt to potential changes in future.
Two Sustainability Appraisals – one of the options and one of all the sites in the
Borough (including suggested sites) - will also be published as background documents.

39

The public will be able to make comments on these, but it should be noted that the
Sustainability Appraisal of the sites does not form part of the main Preferred Options.
Instead it is part of the preparatory work which is being published for information at this
stage. No recommendations are made in the Sustainability Appraisal and no sites will
be allocated as part of the Preferred Options – this will take place at the Proposed
Submission stage which is planned for later in the year.
Consultation on the Preferred Options will be for eight weeks from 4th June to the 30th
July.

Risk Management
The main risks relate to whether the GTLP can ensure a sufficient rolling supply of sites
(including a 5 year supply) and whether the specific criteria will ensure that future Gypsy
and Traveller development in the Borough is sustainable and of high quality to meet the
needs of both Gypsy and Travellers and the settled community. Consultation on the
GTLP Preferred Options will enable this risk to be managed by allowing the Council to
refine considerations that will be used to assess the suitability of suggested sites prior to
allocation in the GTLP, as well as informing the creation of specific criteria-based
policies.
Legal compliance
In producing the GTLP Preferred Options, the Authority had to assess whether the
document was compatible with the legal requirements associated with plans of the
authority. This included the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England)
Regulations 2012; the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes
Regulations 2004; the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010; the
Human Rights Act; compliance with Directives of the European Commission and
subsequent UK Regulations and ensuring that no segment of the Borough’s community
was likely to be unfairly penalised.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
2015/16

Next Financial Year
(Year 2) 2016/17

£27,000 for
consultation on the
Preferred Options
and Proposed
Submission
Document
£78,000 to carry
out preparation for
examination and
examination. The
timing of the

Is there sufficient
Revenue or
funding – if not
Capital?
quantify the Shortfall
Yes – the costs of
Revenue
producing the GTLP
will be covered by the
existing budget

40

Following Financial
Year (Year 3)
2017/18

examination will
depend on the
Planning
Inspectorate and
could potentially
run into 2017/18
£0 – although
dependent upon
Planning
Inspectorate
examination may
fall into 2016/17 –
costs and budget
will be carried
forward from
2016/17

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
The table above sets out the specific project costs associated with producing the GTLP.
This is a multi-year project and therefore the costs will be spread across a number of
financial years, the exact timing of which will be subject to external influences such as
the Planning Inspectorate’s availability for the Public Examination.

Cross-Council Implications
Section 225 of the Housing Act 2004 requires local authorities (such as Wokingham
Borough Council) to (1) carry out an assessment of the accommodation needs of
Gypsies and Travellers residing in or resorting to their district and (2) prepare a strategy
in respect of meeting such accommodation needs. The assessment of needs involved
collaborative working between a number of corporate services who have involvement
with the Gypsy and Traveller community, including Housing, Environmental Health and
Development Management, as well as the Traveller Education Service. This ensured
that information was available to develop an accurate assessment of the need for
additional pitches in the Borough. This also enabled the different services to have an
input into the areas that should be covered by the emerging GTLP in order to meet
those needs.

List of Background Papers
• Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) March 2015
• Sustainability Appraisal incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA
including SEA) on Preferred Options and Sites (two documents), and Habitats
Regulation Assessment (HRA)
• Consultation responses on the GTLP Draft Options

Contact Hannah Wilson
Telephone No 0118 974 6453
Date 11 May 2015

Service Environment
Email hannah.wilson@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 1b

41

This page is intentionally left blank

42

Agenda Item 9.
TITLE

Changes to Charging for Attendance at Adult
Social Care Day Centres from June 2015

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Stuart Rowbotham, Director of Health and Wellbeing

LEAD MEMBER

Julian McGhee-Sumner, Executive Member for
Health and Wellbeing

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
This new charging framework will have the following objectives:
-

-

equity and consistency – everyone will be required to make a contribution
towards the full cost of all their services based on their ability to pay; currently
subsidised services (where we only ever charge less than the full cost) benefit
only a small number of social care customers (6%) leaving other customers
disadvantaged
fairness – social care customers will be required to make a contribution only if
they have financial means to do so (generally those with more than £23,250 in
savings); those who are unable to pay will continue to get their services for free
or at a reduced rate according to their financial means.

The implementation of this new charging framework is aligned to the Council’s priorities
of:
• Offering excellent value for your Council Tax
• Looking after the vulnerable
• Improving health, wellbeing and quality of life
RECOMMENDATION
That the Executive confirms the decision previously made at 29th January 2015
Executive of a new social care charging framework with social care customers, carers
and residents in Wokingham Borough. The recommendations are as follows:
1)

that all chargeable services will be charged for, subject to a financial assessment,
with the objective of removing subsidies for those who can afford to fund the cost
of their care package (generally those with more than £23,250 in savings);

2)

that the new charges are phased in for those currently receiving services such
that any increase in charges is capped at £50 per week up until the end of March
2017, but that the full charge is applied thereafter;

SUMMARY OF REPORT
Unfortunately the decision taken by the 29th January 2015 Executive as it applies to Day
Care Centres was inadvertently overlooked when preparing the Fees and Charges part
of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2015/18 - Revenue Budget Submission 2015/16
report agreed at the 19th February 2015 Executive meeting; Item 114.00, page 10 refers.

43

This omission had the effect of reversing the January decision as it applies to Adult
Social Care customers attending Day Care Centres.
The January Executive report stated that the current charging regime for non-residential
social care is unfair in that it subsidises some social care services whilst others are
recharged at full cost (subject to a financial assessment or ‘means test’) so that some
people needing social care benefit, but others do not. In addition, the council loses much
needed income. It should be noted that any charge will generally only apply to those
with over £23,250 in savings in accordance with national guidance. The existing
arrangement is a legacy issue and is overdue for revision. It is proposed that some
protection is offered to existing users through a phased approach with a maximum
additional charge of £50 per week up to March 2017 before introducing the full charge
for 2017/18 onwards.
The 29th January report proposed that charges for these services be increased but
noted that the process and methodology by which an individual’s maximum contribution
is determined remains unchanged. This means that should an individual’s contribution
increase this is as a result of their individual financial assessment (undertaken according
to Department of Health guidelines) which determines their maximum contribution, being
higher than the current cost of care provided.
Consultation
The decision to consult on these changes was made at the Executive meeting of 25th
September 2014 and the outcome reported to the 29th January 2015 meeting of the
Executive who approved the above recommendations.

44

Background
The Executive at its meeting of 25th September 2014 agreed to consult on changes to
the Adult Social Care charging policy. The outcome of this consultation was reported to
the 29th January 2015 Executive who agreed full cost recovery for day services subject
to a maximum additional charge of £50 per week up to March 2017 before introducing
the full charge for 2017/18 onwards.
The 19th February 2015 Executive agreed the fees and charges for 2015/16 as part of
the report entitled Medium Term Financial Plan 2015/18 - Revenue Budget Submission
2015/16, but the changes to the day care charges previously agreed were inadvertently
omitted and in effect, the February Executive reversed the 29th January 2015 decision.
However the February report did correctly show the other decisions made in January.
Analysis of Issues
The Executive could choose to leave the position unchanged but that would result in
charges for day services continuing to be contrary to the Executive’s previous decision
to be charged at full cost, and result in a loss of income which has been factored into
the Departments budget.
This anomaly is the result of an administrative error and the Executive are asked to
confirm the decision taken on 29th January 2015 with an effective date of 1st June 2015.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall

(£12.5k)

Revenue or
Capital?
Revenue

Included within the
budget approved at
15th February 2015
Executive.

(£15.0k)
(£30.0k)

Revenue
Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
Should the Executive confirm the decision previously made to charge full cost then the
Council would receive additional income from people paying all or part of the cost of
their care services (subject to a financial assessment). This particularly applies to those
who use day care services. The Council may also benefit if self-funders who currently
receive subsidised services, make their own arrangements; in these instances the
reduction in spend will offset the reduction in income and may result in a positive impact
on the overall budget.

45

The exact income or savings will depend on individual packages of care and financial
assessments. In addition, service providers in the private and voluntary sector have
diverse prices and this will also affect the cost of care packages. The impact on
customers and finances will be reviewed both during and post-implementation of the
new charging policy.
The January report estimated additional income from the proposal to phase the charge
with a cap of £50 per week for existing users for 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 as
follows: 2015/16 & 2016/17 12 people x £50 per week x 50 weeks = £15k*1
2017/18
12 people x £103 per week x 50 weeks = £30k*1
The delayed implementation to 1st June 2015 will reduce income for 2015/16 by approx.
£2.5k which the department has taken into account.
*1 abated by 50% to reflect not all will be assessed to pay the full increase.

Cross-Council Implications
A change to the policy for charging will have an impact on the Welfare Benefits Team
who carry out financial assessments of all adult social care customers and the Finance
Support Team who process and pay the invoices.

List of Background Papers
Report to Executive, 25th September 2014
Report to Executive, 29th January 2015
Report to Executive, 19th February 2015
Contact Steve Cross
Telephone No 0118 974 8315
Date 13 May 2015

Service Finance & Resources
Email steve.cross@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 2

46

Agenda Item 10.
TITLE

Council Owned Companies Business

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 26 May 2015

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Director of Finance and Resources

LEAD MEMBER

Keith Baker, Leader of The Council

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Transparency in respect of Council Owned Companies
RECOMMENDATION
The Executive is asked to note:
1)
the strategy and objectives of the Council’s subsidiary companies;
2)

the budget monitoring position for the ten months to February 2015;

3)

the operational update for the ten months to February 2015.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
Changes in Directorship in WBC (Holdings) Limited
There have been no changes to WBC (Holdings) Ltd directorships since the last
quarterly report to Executive for the period to 31December 2014 was approved by
Executive on 29 January 2015.
Strategy and Objectives of the Council’s Subsidiary Companies
A brief summary of each of the individual company’s strategy and objectives is set out
below. This includes WBC (Holdings) Ltd, which was set up in 2013/14, and which is a
holding company for the Council’s interests in its main subsidiaries, Wokingham
Housing Ltd (WHL), and Optalis.
Operational Update
An operational update is provided for each of the companies up to February 2015, which
emphasises that certain group companies, mainly Wokingham Housing Ltd, are
currently in the cash flow intensive capital development phase, to be followed by income
generation arising from the developments.
Budget Monitoring Report
A budget monitoring report is provided for each of the companies up to February 2015,
which confirms that overall the group is in a loss making position as budgeted. This
reflects the significant level of capital works being undertaken by WHL, which will be
followed in later years by income flows from the investments.

47

1. Strategy and Objectives
1.1 WBC (Holdings) Ltd
WBC (Holdings) Ltd was set up in 2013/14 and is a holding company whose main
objective is to ensure that the operation of the subsidiaries is conducted in an efficient
manner, and coordinated as a group, especially with regard to taxation. This is achieved
by the ability of the holding company to claim group tax relief, so that for example losses
from one company are offset against losses from another when corporation tax is
calculated.
The strategy is to ensure that all loans, grants or shareholdings from the Council to the
subsidiary companies are channelled through the holding company. In addition, the
Council’s former shareholdings in WHL and Optalis have now been sold to WBC
(Holdings) Ltd at face value of £1.95m.
1.2 Optalis
The company’s main objectives are :
To deliver a range of high quality adult care services to Wokingham residents
To achieve income by providing services to other councils, organisations and
individuals.
In order to achieve these main objectives, the company has the following priorities and
strategies :
To fulfil the current Wokingham adult care contract with Wokingham Council with
maximum efficiency and quality.
To support the Council in its challenge to achieve efficiency savings in the adult social
care system as a whole.
To expand the capacity of the company to deliver high quality care services to private
paying residents of Wokingham borough and beyond.
To develop opportunities to work with other Councils, through consultancy services or
through Joint Venture arrangements
The delivery of the above is dependent on the following strategies :
Development of a competent and fulfilled workforce
Ensuring the commitment to high quality care and excellent customer service are
embedded in all staff members everyday working practices
The involvement of our customers and their families in service planning to improve
their care experience
Adding value to our partnerships through collaborative income generating
relationships
The development of our skills and experience to enable future sustainable growth
1.3 Wokingham Housing Ltd (WHL)
WHL’s main objectives are :
To build a sustainable and profitable long-term business based on developing high

48

quality housing schemes on council owned land
To seek other opportunities for growth.
The main strategy to achieve these objectives is :
To integrate completed schemes into housing management
To develop two large projects at Eustace Crescent and former Fosters site
To take a range of smaller sites through the planning process and on to development.
The establishment of a 100% owned subsidiary, Loddon Homes Ltd, in 2013/14, to
achieve Registered Provider (RP) status enabling Government grants to be obtained
thereby supporting development projects.
2. Operational Update to February 2015
2.1 WBC (Holdings) Ltd
WBC (Holdings) Ltd does not undertake any operations as it is a holding company.
2.2 Optalis
Recruitment of front line care staff remains the biggest ongoing operational challenge,
particularly for Home Care workers. Optalis has invested full time resource into this
area and is continually seeking innovative ways to attract staff to Optalis.
A high turnover of staff was experienced during 2014-15, on average 32% across the
company. Efforts have been made both in the areas of recruitment and retention and for
the last quarter (Jan-March 2015) staff turnover stood at 17%, which is significantly
below the average for care providers in the borough of 29% and therefore a positive
development for Optalis.
2015/16 will be a year of consolidation for Optalis, with permanent appointments to the
Managing Director and Chairman roles to be made, and investments in staff around
training, internal communications, and improved staff engagement a priority.
The focus remains the successful delivery of the core care contract with the Council,
with some modest growth plans to offset inflationary pressures on the cost base.
Optalis broadly performs well on the Core Contract for care services. The homecare and
reablement services have delivered volumes of activity below the levels required by the
contract for reasons of both capacity (recruitment) and also low levels of referrals into
services. This is the subject of regular reporting and joint working with the commissioner
to resolve.
The Optalis Board has recently reviewed its Corporate Risk Register and is prioritising
efforts in relation to Data Protection best practice and Health & Safety governance.
Growth success in the immediate term is focussed around a private home care offering,
the success of which will be dependent upon our ability to recruit staff and generate
capacity to deliver a much needed service.
Recent tender wins with Bracknell Forest (Extra Care Housing) and Bury LA (A local

49

authority trading company (LATCO) consultancy), together with the transfer from the
Council of a number of learning disability supported housing services from another
provider, put Optalis in a strong position going into 2015/16.
2.3 Wokingham Housing Ltd (WHL)
2.3.1 WHL Completed schemes:
The residents at Hillside Park, (10 flats for people with learning disabilities and 2 older
persons bungalows), are settled in and the inspections to conclude the defects liability
period are underway. At New Beverly House, (Vauxhall Dr), the 4 residents with learning
disabilities are also settled in their new home.
2.3.2 WHL Schemes in Progress and/or Development :
Eustace Crescent, (Phoenix Avenue): Planning permission has been secured for 68
new homes, (50% social rent and 50% affordable rent), on this former council estate.
The contract is out to tender via the Homes and Communities Agency, (HCA),
Development Partner Framework, with the contractor being appointed at the end of
June and a start on site in mid-August. The first handovers are scheduled for midFebruary 2017
Former Fosters Care Home: Planning permission has been awarded for 34, (affordable
rent), enhanced care flats for older people on the site of the former Fosters Care Home.
The detailed design is being developed with specialist architects and with input from
WBC’s Adult Social Care Team. This scheme will also be procured via the HCA
Framework, with a contractor due to be appointed in October for a start on site in
November. Handover is expected in April 2017. The HCA have recently confirmed that
£1.4m of grant funding is allocated to the project, (50% payable on commencement and
50% on completion).
Barratt Crescent: This scheme of 2 X 2 bed flats to be let at social rents is due to go
before the Planning Committee in May.
Pipe-line sites: A pipe-line of around 55 smaller sites is at various stages of
development and will go before the Planning Committee during the spring and summer
period. WHL is also working with WBC on bringing forward proposals for the
regeneration of Gorse Ride and a number of other significant opportunities on WBC
sites and other locations.
Loddon Homes: The Registered Provider (RP) work will be finished during May 2015
and will be considered by the WHL Board and the WBC (Holdings) Ltd shortly
afterwards and subject to approval onto the HCA to be considered by their Regulatory
Committee. This will be the first registration of a local authority housing company
sponsored registered provider. A total of £1.75m of grant funding has been secured to
date for WHL’s Hillside and Fosters schemes.
Staffing Update: The staff team has been strengthened by the appointment of Darren
Toes, (a chartered surveyor), as Operations Director. The Managing Director, Robin
Fielder will be leaving at the end of May. Bill Flood, a very experienced manager with
private and public sector experience will be taking up the post of Managing Director in
mid-May.

50

3.

Budget Monitoring for the 10 months to February 2015

3.1 WBC Group Consolidated, (i.e. comprising WBC (Holdings) Ltd, Wokingham
Housing Ltd, and Optalis Ltd).
The figures shown below represent the overall expenditure and income of the Council’s
subsidiary companies :
At the operational level, the net surplus was £4k compared to budgeted surplus of £89k
largely due to a shortfall in Optalis income.
After tax, interest and exceptional items, the loss to date is £171k compared to a
budgeted loss of £349k. The shortfall in Optalis income is offset by savings of interest
on loans for WHL developments partially offset by capitalisation and other WHL costs
explained below.
3.2 WBC (Holdings) Ltd
A loss of £106k is reported compared to a budgeted loss of £464k. This is largely due to
a saving of £330k on interest as anticipated works on Eustace Crescent did not take
place, and as a result forecast loans from the Council to WBC (Holdings) Ltd were
significantly lower at £612k than the forecast, resulting in lower interest charges. Losses
are expected in the early years as a result of the upfront investments required with
subsequent income accruing from the investments.
3.3 Optalis
The Year to Date pre-tax result for the ten months to February 2015 is a profit of £148k
- favourable to budget by £13k (budget £130k)
The key favourable variances during the year have related to operational vacancies and
delays in recruitment, and unbudgeted third party income. These have been offset by
unfavourable variances in agency spend, the implementation of the National Pay
Agreement and lack of private homecare growth.
The forecast for the full year is to be lower than budget at £155k (budget £180k). A
budgeted amount of £195k has been returned to the Commissioner within these
amounts
Net assets at 28 February are £152k (budget £136k) and are forecast to be at this level
at year end.
Cash at 28 February was £518k (budget £141k), and is forecast to be approximately
£600k at year end (budget £347k).
3.4 Wokingham Housing Ltd
An operating loss of £185k is reported for the 10 month period, compared to a budgeted
profit of £9k. This variance is largely due to a decision to reverse the capitalisation of
staff salaries, which accounted for an extra £140k charge to the Profit and Loss
Account. In addition, a £24k charge for depreciation was unbudgeted, while there were
£34k extra property related costs for rates, repairs and a review of sites. Similar to WBC
(Holdings) Ltd, deficits are expected in early years as operational costs are required to
develop income generating schemes.

51

4.

Background to Budget Monitoring Reports

4.1 WBC (Holdings) Ltd
Profit &Loss Account (P & L) for the 10 months to February 2015
WBC (Holdings) Ltd
Profit and Loss Account for the period to 28th February 2015

Income

Feb YTD
Actual
£
0

Operating Expenditure

(106,275)

Operating Loss

(106,275)

Feb YTD
Budget
£

0
(463,660)
(463,660)

Feb YTD
Variance
£

0
(194,967)
(193,545)

Expenditure for the 10 months of £272k is £106k is £358k below budget of £464k
primarily as a result of interest on loans being below budget due to delayed starts on
WHL developments.

4.2 Wokingham Housing Ltd (WHL)
P&L for the 10 months to February 2015
Wokingham Housing Ltd
Feb YTD
Actual
£

Feb YTD
Budget
£

Feb YTD
Variance
£

87,050

85,866

1,422

Operating Expenditure

(271,978)

(77,011)

(194,967)

Operating Loss

(184,928)

8,855

(193,545)

Profit and Loss Account for the period to 28th February 2015

Income

Income for the 10 months is £87k, which is in excess of budget of £86k.
Operating expenditure for the 10 months of £272k is £195k adverse to budget of £77k
primarily as a result of reversal of capitalisation unbudgeted depreciation charges
The full year forecast is for a loss of £259k profit.

52

Balance Sheet
Wokingham Housing Limited / Loddon Homes Limited

Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) P11 - February 2015
31st March 2014
£

Non-Current Assets
Leasehold Properties
Furniture & Fittings
Assets under Construction
Investments

1,280,650
19,350
84,289
1

28th February 2015
£

£

£

1,384,290

1,265,301
16,824
272,275
-

1,554,399

300,838

26,771
5,574
15,443
286,692
8,413

342,894

(311,520)

(19,031)
(43,994)
(28,898)
(3,975)

(95,898)

Current Assets
Dr Control
Pre-Payments
Inter-Co Drs
Bank A/c
VAT Liability

7,731
175,000
115,386
2,721

Current Liabilities
Cr Control
Retentions
Inter-Co Crs
Accruals

Net Current Assets/(liabilities)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities

(15,807)
(43,994)
(203,217)
(48,502)

(10,682)
1,373,608

Non-Current Liabilities
Total Assets less Total Liabilities

246,996
1,801,395

(612,715)
1,373,608

1,188,680

(526,392)
1,900,000

(711,320)
1,900,000

1,373,608

1,188,680

Equity

Reserves
Share Capital
Total Equity

Non-Current Assets of £1.55m comprise of Leasehold Properties £1.265m
(Hillside Park),Furniture and Fittings £17k (Hillside Park), Assets Under Construction
£272k
Current Assets of £343k comprise £47k debtors and prepayments, £287k
cash as the bank and £8k VAT refund expected
Current Liabilities of £96k represent the value of invoices held at the balance
sheet date that will be due for payment.
Reserve liabilities are £711k.
In total there are 1,900,000 issued and fully paid Ordinary £1 shares held by
WBC (Holdings) Ltd. The authorised share capital remains at £1.9m.

53

4.3 Optalis

P&L for the 10 months to February 2015
Total Company

Actual

Budget

Income
Costs
Operating Profit

(£000)
10,106
(9,782)
324

(£000)
10,299
(10,044)
255

Budget
Variance
(£000)
(193)
262
69

Non trading costs
Depreciation

(101)
(75)

(54)
(66)

(47)
(9)

Profit before tax

148

135

13

Corporation tax

(27)

(30)

3

Net profit

121

105

16

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

See other financial
implications below
See other financial
implications below
See other financial
implications below

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

Revenue or
Capital?
Revenue

Yes

Revenue

Yes

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
The Council will benefit from reduced costs in commissioning services, the interest and
management charges to WBC (Holdings) Ltd and future profits paid out as dividend.
These will be factored into the Medium Term Financial Plan under the appropriate
service.
Cross-Council Implications
No Cross-Council Implications

List of Background Papers
None

54

Contact Stephen McGrail
Telephone No 0118 974 6560

Service Resources
Email
Stephen.McGrail@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 1

Date 11 May 2015

55

This page is intentionally left blank

56

Agenda Item 11.
TITLE

Gorse Ride South

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

Finchampstead South

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR

Stuart Rowbotham, Director of Health and Wellbeing

LEAD MEMBER

John Kaiser, Executive Member for Planning and
Highways

OUTCOME
To proceed with a development options appraisal of Gorse Ride South.
RECOMMENDATION
The Executive is requested to approve:
1)
the serving of demolition notices to the tenants living in council owned homes in
Gorse Ride South in order to suspend any further Right to Buy, excluding those
living in sheltered accommodation and designated bungalows as these are
exempt from the Right to Buy; and
2)

the formation of a project group to undertake feasibility work and carry out a
public consultation around options for the future of Gorse Ride South, to include
Cockayne Court.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
Gorse Ride South is an estate in the Finchampstead ward of Wokingham Borough.
Wokingham Borough Council owns 177 homes on the estate, made up of 133 of nontraditional construction, made up of Guildway, Ministry of Housing & Local Government
(MOHLG) and an unknown construction type, 46 homes are of traditional construction. A
breakdown of units can be found in table 1.
The Asset and Maintenance team within Tenant Services have raised concerns on the
construction type at Gorse Ride South and have commissioned reports relating to stock
condition by specialist contractors and our in house team relating to drainage on the
estate.
There are a number of maintenance issues relating to the non-traditional homes
including poor thermal insulation, some structural defects, and above and below ground
drainage issues which lead to high maintenance liabilities compared with other homes in
council ownership.
The serving of demolition notices will halt any further Right to Buys on the estate for
seven years. This will give Wokingham Borough Council the opportunity to engage with
the wider community and stakeholders, and determine the long term future for the
assets on the estate.
A plan Detailing Gorse Ride South, Cockayne Court and associated bungalows can be
found in appendix 1 and 2.

57

Background
Gorse Road South is a residential area of Finchampstead, Wokingham. The council
owns and manages 177 homes including;
•
•
•

72 traditional and non-traditional bungalows for the elderly
23 homes at Cockayne Court, a low rise flatted enhanced sheltered facility
82 non-traditional houses

The majority of homes on the estate remain in Council ownership while 55 have been
sold under the Right to Buy. Over time Housing Associations have also acquired a few
homes on the estate.

Property Composition
The council homes consists of 131 non-traditional timber framed system build known as
MOHLG. The MOHLG homes were designed by The Ministry of Housing and Local
Government Development Group and were constructed during the period of 1970-1971.
The properties have a distinctive non-traditional appearance with shallow pitched roofs
and walls clad directly with timber tongue and grooved boarding. A total of 180
properties were believed to have been built on the estate.
The Guildway form of construction, alternatively Cedar Homes, was built by Guildway
Limited during the 1960s and 70s. A total of 3200 were thought to have been
constructed nationally. The homes owned by Wokingham Borough Council were
believed to be built in 1970’s. The homes consist of semi and terraced houses,
bungalows and low-rise 2-storey flats. External walls are constructed from platform
frame construction storey height timber frame panels overlaid with fibreboard and
building paper, the Gable ends are separately clad with brick.
The traditional construction homes are Cockayne Court which consists of 23 one
bedroom flats and 23 bungalows.
The remainder of the homes on the estate are owned privately (55) and by Housing
Associations (5). Any consultation on the future of the estate will require input from
other landlords and the 55 owner occupiers.
Table 1
PROPERTY TYPE
1 BED BUNGALOW
1 BED FLAT
2 BED BUNGALOW
2 BED HOUSE
3 BED HOUSE
4 BED HOUSE
5 BED HOUSE
TOTAL

TRADITIONAL
23
23

46

58

NONTRADITIONAL
23
26
12
66
3
1

TOTAL
23
23
49
12
66
3
1

131

177

Community Involvement
The Gorse Ride South area of Finchampstead is a longstanding area of social
deprivation within the borough (according to indices defined by the Department for
Communities and Local Government). It has a high number of non-traditional build
council properties. To help build capacity and support residents a Community House
has been allocated from the council stock, a Community Development Worker is based
in this facility. .
Community development work was established in Gorse Ride around 7 years ago. A
Community Development programme aims to improve the lives of people living with an
area through firstly building trust and secondly facilitating key activities and services
which support a community to help itself and will normally take a number of years to
achieve sustained change and improvement. Since the inception of the programme,
the Gorse Ride South area has seen a substantial improvement in a number of key
factors such as anti-social behaviour. To further strengthen the resilience of the local
community, a project was initiated in 2014 to embed the Council’s restorative practice
approach developed within its Family First programme within the local community.
During this work, it has been clear that residents are very concerned about the Council’s
plans for its housing stock in Gorse Ride South.

Analysis of Issues
Current Responsive Repair Issues
Gorse Ride South like many other council owned estates has suffered under investment
over time under the previous housing finance regime. In the case of Gorse Ride South
an options appraisal is required to determine the future of the council owned homes and
the wider estate.
Gorse Ride South takes up a disproportionate amount of time and resources for the
relatively few homes we own on the estate. In financial year 2014/15 Wokingham
Borough Council Tenant Services undertook 1041 responsive and void jobs to the
estate. This amounted to spend in excess of £216,000. Of this £36,000 was spent on 15
homes to bring them back into use after becoming void. The day to day responsive
budget for the service is £1.3M.
The current spend for responsive repairs are higher than the estimates in the stock
condition report, given the condition of the properties £2Million maybe a more realistic
figure against an estimate of £740,000.
An investigation by WPS highlighted failures in above ground and below ground
drainage. It is estimated that drainage works to the estate could be as high as
£220,000. The above ground drainage and below ground drainage works would require
assistance from freeholders on the estate.

59

Above ground
Below ground
Prelims
Contingency
Consult, design & specification
Total

Table 2
£50,000
£90,000
£30,000
£20,000
£30,000
£220,000

Stock Condition Report and Repair Costs
The non-traditional stock condition report carried out by Rand Associates in 2011,
details the repair cost requirements for the 30 year period to 2041. The report identified
the Gorse Ride South as requiring £6,945,270 of repairs over the 30 years. The table
below details the forecasted 30 years repair costs for the non-traditional units but does
not include Cockayne Court.
The report shows that £3 million capital repairs in the first five years, dealing with
drainage and immediate issues.
A halt on capital and decent homes investment was put in place in 2014/15; however 43
boilers were replaced at a cost of £145,000 after they failed.

Period

Forecast
Capital

Year 1 - 5
Year 5 - 10
Year 10 - 30
Totals

£2,461,000
£437,000
£1,456,000
£4,354,000

Table 3
Reactive
Garage
costs
Block
repairs
£370,000
£80,000
£370,000
£9,385
£1,480,000 £61,885
£2,220,000 £151,720

Drainage
Upgrade
£220,000

£220,000

Total

£3,131,000
£816,385
£2,997,885
£6,945,270

Options Available
The following basic options are considered:
§ To continue with the current level of repair spending and carry out the
required repairs as per costs identified within the stock condition survey
§ To consult with the community about the future of Gorse Ride South.
Considerations
Having considered the current income forecasts against the investigation reports, it is
clear that in financial terms alone, the Gorse Ride South Estate is expensive to maintain
and that the ongoing costs of managing and maintaining the Gorse Ride South do not
represent a good use of resources. Further, given that the majority of the stock is nontraditional, the long term viability of the homes is questionable.
A decision is required to determine the future of these council assets as to whether they
should be improved to meet the decent homes standard or a different option is taken.

60

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

£75K

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

Revenue or
Capital?
HRA Capital

N/A
N/A

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
HRA business plan
Cross-Council Implications
There will be an impact on community development colleagues who will work closely
with housing to progress community consultation.
A decision on the future on the homes and garages on the estate could lead to removal
of homes that do not meet the decent homes standard.
List of Background Papers
Estate Layout
Non Traditional Stock Condition Survey
Contact Simon Price
Telephone No 0118 974 3775
Date 18 May 2015

Service Tenant Services
Email simon.price@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. V2

61

This page is intentionally left blank

62

63

This page is intentionally left blank

64

Cockayne Court and Arnett Avenue

65

This page is intentionally left blank

66

Agenda Item 12.
TITLE

Tape Lane

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

Hurst

DIRECTOR

Stuart Rowbotham, Director of Health and Wellbeing

LEAD MEMBER

John Kaiser, Executive Member for Planning and
Highways

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
The replacement of 6 defective homes to be replaced with new homes, subject to
planning, at affordable rents. The replacement homes will contribute to meeting housing
needs in the Borough.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Executive :
1)
approve the demolition of 21 – 26 Tape Lane, Hurst;
2)

approve the decanting of tenants to temporary or permanent homes;

3)

approve funding of £2m consisting of £1.4m from the HRA and £600k from the
retained Right to Buy receipts, which is currently available within the HRA;

4)

delegates authority to the Director of Health and Wellbeing to submit a detailed
planning application for the redevelopment of 21 – 26 Tape Lane.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
On 25th September 2014, the Executive approved the strategic purchase of 23 Tape
Lane Hurst. This purchase allowed Wokingham Borough Council to take ownership of
21 to 26 Tape Lane with a view to looking at options for the site.
Any proposed development of the site will take account of feedback from planning
colleagues as to what would be acceptable. Feedback will also be sought from Hurst
Parish council.
The Head of Housing is requesting approval to commence a project to replace these
defective homes, subject to planning. It is proposed the scheme is funded using HRA
resources and a proportion of retained right to buy receipts, information on the use of
Retained Right to Buy Receipts can be found in part 2 of this report.

67

Background
21 – 26 Tape Lane consists of six two and three bedroom Swedish timber homes, these
properties were constructed after the 2nd World war and were seen as a temporary
housing solution at the time.
Given the construction type, it would not be an effective use of resources to invest in
homes that do not meet, and will not meet in the future, the decent homes standard due
to their poor thermal performance; however it must be noted that some tenants living in
them are very happy with their homes.
Wokingham Borough Council served demolition notices on the tenants of
21/22/24/25/26 Tape Lane in October 2014. This halts the Right to Buy process and
allows the council to evaluate its options for these homes.
Given there are only 5 homes occupied it is planned to work with tenants affected by
this proposal on a one to one basis. It is proposed that all tenants if they so wish will
have an opportunity to return to Tape Lane after the replacement homes have been
built.
If Executive permission is granted It is envisaged that a planning application for the
redevelopment will be submitted in the summer of 2015, with a start on site prior to
Christmas.
Analysis of Issues
Tenure
It is planned that the replacement homes would be funded from, and the asset would sit,
in the HRA and thus be traditional council housing; this development will offset some of
the homes lost by right to buy since Wokingham Borough Council purchased the stock
in 2012.
A Local Lettings Plan for allocations to the new properties will be developed to meet
local housing need and allow tenants who wish to return to Tape Lane to do so.
Additional social housing in Hurst would be a valued community asset and meet the
aspirations of a number of households on the housing register.
The replacement homes would be charged at a social rent, this would be at the same
level Wokingham Borough Council charges for existing council homes.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.

68

How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall

Revenue or
Capital?

SEE PART 2
SCHEDULE

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
See Part 2 Schedule
Cross-Council Implications
The replacement of these 6 defective homes seeks to provide good quality, sustainable
homes that will have a positive impact on Wokingham Borough Councils housing stock
and will provide decent homes that families want to live in.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
The report contains references throughout to commercially sensitive information that
would compromise Wokingham Borough Council in procurement of contractors. These
references have been removed from this report and are provided in a separate Part 2
schedule.
List of Background Papers
Right to Buy Receipts information from DCLG
Wokingham Borough Council Executive Report Acquisition of 23 Tape Lane 25th
September 2014
Contact Simon Price
Telephone No 0118 974 3775
Date 18 May 2015

Service Heath and Well Being
Email simon.price@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. V1

69

This page is intentionally left blank

70

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

71

This page is intentionally left blank

72

Agenda Item 13.
TITLE

New Secondary School in the South of
Wokingham

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Judith Ramsden , Director of Children’s Services
Heather Thwaites, Director of Environment

LEAD MEMBER

Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Executive Member for
Children’s Services
John Kaiser, Executive Member for Planning and
Highways
Anthony Pollock, Executive Member for Economic
Development and Finance

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
To ensure that there are sufficient school places to discharge the Councils duties under
the Education Act 1996.
RECOMMENDATION
That Executive:
1)

approves additional funding of £6.9m;

2)

approves the provision of a contingency of £3.36m;

3)

notes the progress made by the project;

4)

notes the risks to the opening of the school and the contingency plans put in
place;

5)

delegates authority to the Director Finance and Resources to forward fund the
project through short term borrowing of £7.5m in 15/16;

6)

notes how the shortfall and contingency will be funded, as set out in paragraph
2.7 of the report.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
1.

In July 2014, funding and delegated authority was approved for the delivery of a
new 1200 place secondary school on the Arborfield Garrison site. A stretching
timetable was also set to open the school in September 2016. This remains on
track.

2.

A series of key activities have been successfully concluded:

•
•

Planning approval
S106 agreement for AGLC

73

•
•

The appointment of a construction contractor
Recommendation of a Provider

and financial forecasts have been updated accordingly.
3.

The design of the school has been improved and has been developed in full
consultation with the community.

4.

Additional funding of £6.7m is required. The table above shows how the
additional budget will be funded.

74

1. Background and Progress
1.1. In July 2014, the Executive authorised a budget of £30m and delegated the
authority for the delivery of a new secondary school to be situated at the
Arborfield garrison site. The school was to be designed to current DfE
standards (BB103) and for 1200 places, but being capable of being expanded
to 1500 places.
1.2. The target date for opening the school was September 2016 when the school
would open for Year 7 students, namely Phase 1, with subsequent phasing to
be agreed by the project team.
1.3. The timetable proposed in July has been met and remains on track:
Construction
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

S106 Negotiations
Planning committee
Tender return/opening
Appointment of contractor
On site
Phase 1 – Core facilities and min. 210 places
Phase 2 – 1200 place school

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Completed
25 Mar’15
13th Apr
1st May’15
Early Jul’15
Sep’16
Sep’17

•
•
•
•
•

Feb-Apr’15
6 Apr’15
23-24th Apr
End Jun’15
Jul’15

Provider:
•
•
•
•
•

Procurement
Applications due
Assessment
Appointment (by SoS)
Admissions planning process commences

1.4. In addition to the design and construction process, work has been undertaken
to procure a provider for the new school. An assessment process has now been
completed and a recommendation has been sent to the Secretary of State for
Education;
1.5. The new secondary school forms a major part of the Arborfield SDL for which
the associated S106 agreement was successfully agreed at the end of March
2015. In tandem with these negotiations the acquisition of the land for the new
school was also concluded;
1.6. A detailed planning application was submitted on the 14th February and
approved on the 25th March.

75

2. Analysis of Issues
2.1. Design and Construction
The original brief called for a school designed to a standard DfE design, typical
features being:
•
•
•
•
•

Flat roofs
3 storey
Limited range of external finishes
Reduced specifications for internal finishes and systems
Basic sports facilities (school only levels of usage, limited age range, noncompetition specification)

However, the building design process, which included considerable consultation
with stakeholders, in particular the local communities and the Parents Reference
Group, identified a range of key design improvements which would improve the
functionality of the school, enhance the teaching and learning experience and
create an impressive building which will be acting as a catalyst for a major
residential and economic development, including:
•
•

•
•
•
•

Break out spaces – to improve teaching options and introduce flexibility
Pitched roofs to main hall/dining room and entrance/learning resource
centre – improved environment for school use and social events –
aesthetically pleasing, in keeping with masterplan vision and planning
requirement
Glazed stairwells at ends of wings – improved safeguarding and lighting
Wider corridors and covered walkway – improves circulation and flow
management
Brick finishes in keeping with the local building tradition
Higher specification sports facilities eg. full size all weather pitch allowing
competitive matches, higher levels of usage for community use

The recommended design for the school was agreed by the Project Board on 15th
January 2015.
The phasing of the construction works has been considered by the project team
taking into account site logistics, costs of deferring spend and school place
projections. The approach agreed was as follows:
•
•
•

Phase 1 - 180-210 places - Sep’16
Phase 2 - 1200 places
- Sep’17
Phase 3 - 1500 places
- tba

The additional 300 places would be the subject of a separate decision following a
review of WBC’s need for school places and would require further funding.
Tenders were received on 13th April and following due diligence a contractor has
been selected.

76

2.2. Deliverability
Currently, the target remains that the school will open for Year 7 children in
September 2016. However, the timetable was and remains very tight and will be
sensitive to long periods of inclement weather and adverse or abnormal site
conditions. The pressure on the programme has increased due to an increase in
the extent of the building works required in the first year of construction.
However, by way of contingency, access to existing garrison buildings (the
library/training centre and garrison gym) has been negotiated as part of the S106
negotiations with AGLC. These facilities could if necessary be augmented by
temporary specialist building such as canteens, laboratories. This will allow the
school to open on time should there be a delay.
2.3. Infrastructure and Highways
The new school will require significant highways infrastructure to function effectively
and to meet the requirements of sustainable travel. However, the early completion
of the school means that much of the infrastructure which would be provided by the
wider development will not be in place at the time of opening. However, through
negotiations with AGLC and coordination with Highways Section, sustainable routes
have been identified serving its primary communities of Arborfield and
Finchampstead. These will be supported by temporary bus services (funded from
education budgets) as determined by the home locations of the September 2016
cohort.
The development of the project, in particular the community engagement has
highlighted the need for WBC to ensure that all highways and infrastructure
developments associated with the school and the wider SDL are coordinated with
the wider WBC strategy.
2.4. Build Costs
Increased costs have been incurred through the enhancement of the design (see
above & Annex 1) but also through the identification of abnormal and unplanned
items:
•
•
•
•
•

Site investigations
Flood mitigation
Ecological measures
Services and infrastructure
Contingency for works associated with the wider SDL programme

2.5. Capital funding
The new school was to be funded by a combination of DfE Basic Need, S106
(existing and future) and WBC funding (prudential borrowing and capital receipts).
This model remains the case, however, the cash flow model has been updated to
reflect the changes in project cost, the changes to S106 receipts forecast, switch
from S106 to CIL and new borrowing opportunities.
2.6. Revenue Funding
For schools established under the ‘Academy Presumption’ model, local authorities

77

are responsible for the initial revenue funding for the new school ie for each new
cohort. Modelling work has been undertaken with the Schools Finance Team to
establish an indicative budget and this has been incorporated into the DSG
programme.
2.7 Funding of Shortfall and Contingency
To note that shortfall will be funded through a combination of sources available in
2016/17 & 2017/18 (see table below).
Total
S106 (New allocated since MTFP)

(2,600)

Basic need additional allocation *

(2,692)

Reduction in Public Transport Network
bid**
Reduction in Land Acquisition bid

(272)
(2,000)

Total

(6,964)

Plus contingency to be funded by additional basic needs grant £3.36m
Note: * £6.08m of additional basic need was announced after the Medium Term
Financial Plan was produced. The £6.08m has not been included in the resources
for the 3 year capital plan.
Basic Needs additional £’000
Allocated to the new secondary

6,088
school

Provisionally allocated to the contingency for the
new secondary school
Unallocated

(2.692)
(3,360)
36k

Note: **£272k reduction based on the assumption that through working with families
we create more cost effective solutions.
During the early stages of the programme short term borrowing will be required to
cover the cash flow cost of expenditure. Short term borrowing cost will be met by
the Interest on Balance Budget and the position will be kept under review.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1 -3)

Cumulative of £6.9m

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
No
See para 2.7

78

Revenue or Capital
?
Capital

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
In addition to the costs shown above, contingencies to the value of £3.36m have been
identified and will be provided for by top slicing the basic need grant funding in 17/18.
Many of the contingencies are expected to be dealt with over the next 6 months once
work starts on site and the project will make regular reports on progress. Any
contingencies not utilised will become available for the general capital programme.
Cross-Council Implications
None
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Appendix A only is commercially sensitive
List of Background Papers
Appendix A (Part 2)
Service Children’s Services
Email john.wood@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 2

Contact John Wood
Telephone No 07786 909419
Date 18 May 2015

79

This page is intentionally left blank

80

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

81

This page is intentionally left blank

82

Agenda Item 14.
TITLE

Wokingham Theatre New Lease

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 28 May 2015

WARD

Norreys

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Director of Finance and Resources

LEAD MEMBER

Philip Mirfin, Executive Member for Regeneration and
Communities

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
A longer lease will permit Wokingham Theatre Limited to raise funds against the
property for improvements to a building which is becoming dilapidated. A side letter to
the lease will permit limited community use of the building.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Executive agree to proceed with the granting of a new 50 year lease to allow
Wokingham Theatre to raise funds to enhance the building.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
Wokingham Theatre Limited wishes to carry out capital works to the theatre but with 13
years left on their existing lease, they do not have a mortgagable interest in the building.
In order to assist WTL, there is a proposal to accept a surrender of their existing lease
and grant them a new 50 year lease on the same terms as the existing lease save for
modern drafting. The new lease will have a lift and shift clause as their site is centrally
located within North Wokingham SDL.

83

Background
Wokingham Theatre Limited was granted a 42 year ground lease for the site they
currently occupy at Twyford Road, Wokingham, which commenced in April 1986, and
should thereby determine in April 2028. The lease granted was a ground lease at an
initial peppercorn rent, which permitted WTL to build the existing theatre on the site, so
whilst the land belongs to Wokingham Borough Council, the theatre building belongs to
WTL.
WTL now wishes to enhance and extend the building, but to do so they need to borrow
funds, and to do that, they need a longer lease.
WTL propose that WBC accept a surrender of their current lease and grant them a new
50 year lease, which would be acceptable to funders. Any proposals to extend the
building would be subject to planning consent and would be entirely at WTL’s own
expense.
Analysis of Issues
Wokingham Theatre is currently let on a ground lease. The lease does not include the
Theatre building itself which was constructed by WTL. The rent for the ground lease
equates to approximately 25% of the rent that could be achievable for the lease of the
property as a whole. This gives WTL a notional rent benefit of 75% market rent in
acknowledgement of the fact that they paid for the building of the theatre. At the end of
their lease the two interests will merge and the ownership of the theatre will revert to the
Council.
WTL’s current lease will determine by effluxion of time in 2028, i.e. in 13 years’ time;
their proposed new lease will expire in 2065, a difference of 37 years. This will mean
that whilst under the current lease, the Council could in theory, charge full market rent to
the theatre in 2028, in granting a new lease, the Council accepts that it will not be able
to charge market rent until 2065.
If a new lease is granted, WTL will extend and enhance the building, and will provide for
a limited amount of community use subject to availability free of charge. The theatre is
also available to the community for private hire. The theatre has agreed to
acknowledge the Council’s support in its promotional material.
Should the Council wish to redevelop the land as part of North Wokingham SDL, it
would be significantly cheaper to do this at the end of a lease under Landlord & Tenant
legislation. If WBC decided not to renew WTL’s lease in 2028 under the current lease
(or 2065 under the proposed lease), statutory compensation would be payable, as
would compensation for improvements made by WTL to the land. Were the Council to
seek to invoke the lift and shift clause proposed for WTL’s new lease, this would be
considerably more expensive than ending the lease under Landlord & Tenant legislation
as a new site and new building would have to be provided.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough

84

Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
Further detail as to the financial implications of this recommendation are outlined as a
‘part 2’ item on the document attached.

Cross-Council Implications
N/A
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
This matter is an on-going commercial transaction.
List of Background Papers
None.
Contact Irene Kearns
Telephone No 0118 974 6730
Date 18 May 2015

Service Estates Unit
Email Irene.kearns@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 1

85

This page is intentionally left blank

86

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

87

This page is intentionally left blank

88

